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FLORENCE

ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

OFFICE OF THE CITY COORDINATOR

September 19, 2016

To the Mayor, City Council and Citizens of the City of Florence, Kentucky:

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within seven months of
the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants,
Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of
the City of Florence for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of
Florence. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
refiability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of the City of Florence has established a
comprehensive internal controf framework that is designed both to protect the government's
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the City of Florence's financial statements in conformity with GAAP, Because
the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Florence's
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City of Florence's financial statements have been audited by Rankin, Rankin and
Company, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit
was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Florence for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are free of material misstatement. The independent
audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis
for rendering an ungualified opinion that the City of Florence's financia! statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the financial section of

this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and
1
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Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be
read in conjunction with it. The City of Florence’'s MD&A can be found immediately following
the report of the independent auditors,

Profile of the Government

The City of Florence, founded in 1830, is located in the northern most part of the state,
situated in Boone County and is part of the Northern Kentucky Region, which ranks as one of
the top growth areas in Kentucky, The City of Florence currently occupies a land area of 10.4
square miles and serves an estimated population of 31,888. The City of Florence is
empowered to levy numerous sources of revenue including its major sources payroll tax,
business license tax, insurance premiums tax and a property tax on both real and personal
properties. It is also empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limite by annexation,
which ocecurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing body.

The City of Florence operates under the Mayor/Council form of government. Legislative
authority is vested in the City Council, consisting of six City Councit members. The Mayor is
the executive authority. The City Council is responsible, among other things for passing
ordinances, adopting the budget and appointing members to various boards. The Mayor
approves the hiring of all full ime employees. The City Coordinator reports directly to the
Mavor and is responsible for carrying out policies and ordinances of the City Council and is
responsible for the development of short and long range planning, capital improvement
programs and running the day-to-day operations of the city. The City Council is elected on a
non-partisan basis. The Mayor serves based upon a 4 year term and the City Council serve
based upon a 2 year term. The next election for the Office of Mayor will be held in 2018 with
the Mayor to take office January 1, 2019, The next election for City Council will be held in
2016 with the Council to take office on January 1, 2017

The City of Florence provides a full range of services, full time professional police force and
full time professional fire protection; advanced life support medic services; street
maintenance and improvement, waler and sewer services, storm water collection; a full
range of recreational faciliies and activities; cultural events; planning and zoning and code
enforcement.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Florence's financial planning and
control, All departments of the City of Florence are required to submit requests for
appropriation to the City Coordinator. The Cily Coordinator uses these requests as the
starting point for developing a proposed budget. The City Coordinator then presenis this
proposed budget to the Mayor for review. The Mayor and City Coordinator then present the
budget to the City Council for review. Then, City Council budget work sessions are held on
the proposed budget. The final budget is adopted by July 1. The appropriated budget is
prepared by fund and department (e.g., police). Expenditures may not legally exceed
budgeted appropriations at the deparimental level. Any revisions to the budget that would
alter total revenues and department expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City

Councit.
Factors Affecting Financial Condition
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is

considered from the hroader perspective of the spec:f:c environment within which the City of
Florence operates.



Local economy. Florence's location is a major factor in allowing it to become an economic
force in the Greater Cincinnati/Northern Kentucky region. Also, the consistent and persistent
effort put forth by Florence’s elected and appointed officials and other community leaders
over the past twenty years has positioned the City very well,

The focus on financial management and economic development has established the City as
a center of commerce in the Greater Cincinnati and northern Kentucky region. Private
investment and job growth continue in the city. Continuing efforts are paying dividends, and
the City is experiencing successes from large to small, all of which are very important to our
community.

The Northern Kentucky University’'s Center for Economic Analysis and Development
recently released a study about commuter-adjusted populations in the Greater Cincinnati
region. The commuter-adjustad population is the expansion or contraction of the worker
pepulation throughout a typical workday.

Among all communities in northern Kentucky, Florence had the strongest net-inflow of
workers, ‘with our employment to residence ratio of 1.51 to 1. Boone County has the
strongest employment to resident ratio among northern Kentucky counties at 1.21 to 1,
which is behind only Hamilton County in the tri-state region Kenton County’s ratio is 0. 84
to 1, and Campbeli County's ratio is 0.68 to1.

Areas that have an employment {o resident ratio of greater than 1.00 are where there are
more jobs than the number of working residents; therefore, the city imports part of its labor
and classifies us as a “job hub”.

When we analyze the commercial real estate market in Florence, we shape up rather well in
the region. Leasing and purchasing activity in the retail, industrial, and office sectors have
been very active. On the retail side, our vacancy rate in the city is below 4%, which is one of
the best performers in the region, where the regional retail vacancy is 8.4%. The industrial
vacancy rate is under 2%, while the overall vacancy rate in the region is 6.7%. And, the
professional office vacancy rate in Florence is 12%, with the region's rate at 20.6%. Overall,
we fair better than most communities in the region. These are positive signs of the strength
of our economy in Florence, but it does suggest, particularly on the industrial front, that future
growth could be constrained without available industrial real estate coming onto the market.

All of these factors are very strong and positive indicators of Florence's overall economy.
It is truly the perfect time to do business in the City of Florence, The City is locking
forward to one of the largest regional retail developments coming to fruition with the
openings of Costco, Dave and Buster's and Planet Fitness in the current year. The last
pieces of the project is the development of Menards, Chick-fil-a and the Outback

Steakhouse,

There were several state transportation projects that were completed during the vear that are
all of great benefit to the residents, visitors and businesses of the City. In addition, the City is
moving forward with additional enhancements to Mall Road. A new entrance ramp from Mall
Road to southbound I-75 is in the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet's six-year road plan
proposed by the Governor and adopted by the legistature.



The City has also completed numerous sidewalk, street improvements, storm water, sanitary
sewer and water improvements throughout areas of the City. In addition, the City has
finished the redevelopment of the Tanner’'s garage facility.

Long-term financial planning. The city has implemented a three-year budget plan. The three-
year budget plan serves as a basis for a rolling three-year strategic plan for the City. This
plan will carry out the City's vision as adopted by the City Council. Long-term future
sustainability is the primary focus of the budget plan. ‘

The City is continuing to explore the possibility of developing new parks and adding
amenities to existing parks. After the completion of the projects mentioned in the paragraphs
above, there are no large construction projects planned.

Relevant Financial Policies

The City of Florence has adopted a comprehensive set of financial policies addressing
various aregas of operations such as revenue collection, banking services, investment
policies, debt management, budget management and fund balance reserves.

The unassigned fund balance in the general fund is 159.10% of total general fund revenues
and falls within policy guidelines. The City strives to maintain at least 25 percent of total
general fund revenues so as fo reduce amounts that may need to be borrowed in the future.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Florence for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2015. This was the tenth consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR, This report must satisfy both GAAP and
applicabie program requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. However, we believe that
our current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was made
possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the departments of Finance and
Administration. Each member of both departments has my sincere appreciation for the
contribution made in the preparation of this report, Credit must also be given to the Mayor
and Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of the City of Florence's finances.

Respectfully submitted,
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RANK!N, Ranxan & ComMpany B Lookout Corporate Center B Tel. 859/331-5000
Certified Public Accountants 1717 Dixie Highway, Suite 600
Ft. Wright, Kentucky 41011

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Diane E. Whalen, Mayor
Members of City Council
City of Florence, Kentucky

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of
Florence, Kentucky, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which coliectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statemerits

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intermal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

-disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of éxpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairty, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Florence, Kentucky, as of June
30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matfers

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America reguire that the
management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 13 and 57
and scheduls of city contributions and schedule of proportionate share of net position liability on
pages 59 and 60 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operaticnal, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inguiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’'s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express as opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Florence, Kentucky's basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual budget and actual nonmajor fund financial statements, and
statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual budget and actual nonmajor fund financial statements are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statemenis or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual budget and actual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and siatistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

10




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 9, 2016, on our consideration of the City of Florence, Kentucky's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering City of Florence, Kentucky's internal control over financial

reporting and compliance.

RANKIN, RANKIN & COMPANY

@W,M VL&CW

Ft. Wright, Kentucky
September 9, 2016
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CITY OF

FLORE NCE

KENTUCKY®

ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

As management of the City of Florence, we offer readers of the city’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of
Florence, Kentucky for the year ended June 30, 2016. We encourage readers to
consider the information in conjunction with the letter of transmittal, which can be found
on pages 1-4 in this report.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent year by
$168,103,564 (net position). Of this amount, $74,209,489 (unrestricted net position)
may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balance of $75,419,592. This was an increase of $8,721,222 in
comparison to the prior year. The increase was mainly the result of the City's general
operating fund.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$55,741,050, or 196.95% of total general fund expenditures, transfers and other
expenditures,

Qverview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's
basic financial statements. The basic financial statements encompass three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial statements;
and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements. These two statements report
the City’s net assets and changes in them.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements
are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's assets, liabilities
and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference being reported as net
position. Qver time, the increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the City's financial position is improving or deteriorating. Other
nonfinancial factors such as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition
of the City's infrastructure will also assist in assessing the overall financial health of the
City.

The statement of activities presents how the government's net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changas in net position are reported as soon as the

13
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underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of cash
flows. As a result, revenues and expenses are reporied in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows for future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected
revenue and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that
are principally supported by taxes, license fees and intergovernmental activities which
are considered governmental activities, from those functions that are intended to cover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges which are
considered business-type activities.  The governmental activities include most of the
City's basic services. These include but are not limited to police, fire, strest
maintenance, parks and recreation, and general administration. The business-type
activities include the City’s water and sewer service operations and the golf course
operations,

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Florence itself
(known as the primary government), but also the City of Florence Municipal Properties
Corporation for which the City is financially accountable,

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 24 and 25 of this
report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities and
objectives. Some funds are required to be established by State law. However, the City
Councit establishes many other funds with specific sources of revenue to help it control
and manage money for particular purposes (i.e., Infrastructure Fund and Aquatic
Center Fund) or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for grant and restricted
funds (i.e., Municipal Aid Fund and Asset Forfeiture Fund). All funds of the City can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds. The City's two kinds of funds, governmental and proprietary, use different
accounting approaches,

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and
the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps to
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the
near future o finance the City's programs.

Because {he focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for the
governmentat funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government's nearderm financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation fo facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

14



The City of Florence maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental balance sheet and in the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the general fund which is
considered to be a major fund. Data from the other three governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statemenis
elsewhere in this report,

The City adopts an annual appropriated budgef for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 of this
report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds
to account for its water and sewer service operations and the golf course operations.
internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses an internal service fund to
account for its health and dental costs. :

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements
provide separate information on the water and sewer service and the golf course
operations, both of which are considered major funds of the City of Florence. Since
there is only one internal service fund, separate information is provided.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-31 of this
report.

Notes fo the financial statements. The notes provideé additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements,

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 33-56 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information. The
budgetary comparison schedules and combining statements and schedules can be
found on pages 57-58 and 63-68 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government's financial position. In the case of the City of Florence, assetfs and deferred
outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$168,103,564 at the close of the most recent year.

The largest portion of the City's net position (55.85 percent) reflects its investment in
capital assets (2.g. land, buildings, machinery and equipment), less any related debt to

15



finance those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of reilated
debt, it should be noted that the funds needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. ‘

For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 net position changed as follows
{amounts in thousands);

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 - 2018 2016 2015
Current and other '
assels $ 92247 § 83178 $ 9997 $ 9345 $ 102,244 $ 92,523
Capital assets, net 84,681 82,307 29,728 30,246 114,409 112,553
Total assets 176,928 165,485 39,725 39,591 216,653 205,076
Total deferred outflows
of resources 5,324 3,355 810 528 5,934 3,881
Other kabiiities 3,613 3,380 1,563 1,403 5176 4783
Leng-term Habilities 43,849 38,087 4107 4,009 47 956 42,166
Total Habilities 47,462 41,447 5670 5,502 53,132 46,949
Total deferred inflows
of resources 1,224 1,631 128 169 1,352 -
Net position:
Net Invesiment in
capital assels 66,566 63,468 27,328 27,496 93,894 90,964
Unrestricted 66,999 62,295 7,210 6,948 74,209 69 244

Total net position $ 133565 $ 125763 $ 34538 $ 34445 $ 168,103 '$ 160,208

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City was able to report positive balances in all
three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its
separate governmental and business-type activities. The same siuation held true for
the prior fiscal year. '

Net position of the City increased 4.92% or $7.8 million during the current fiscal year.
The increase was mainly attributed to the growth in the revenue line items outpacing
the growth in operating and contractual expenses.

The city was required to adopt GASB Statement 68, “Accounting and Financial
reporting for Pensions, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27" during fiscal year
2015. As a result of that adoption, the City has experienced an increase in deferred
autflows and inflows as well as long-term liabilities with the increase of the pension
liability in the current year. This also resulted in a prior period adjustment in fiscal year
2015,
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Changes in Net Position

Governmental Acthities

Business-type Activities

2016 2015 2016 20158
Rewenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for senices 3 5,063,807 % 4,733,356 % 9,567,752 $  98,703.540
Operating grants and
contributions 1,032,218 1,036,973 - -
Capital grants 2,237,653 2,857,928 - -
General revenues: '
Taxes 31,237,280 30,699,521 - -
Other 1,104,790 509,026 35,338 24,264
Total revenues 40,675,838 39,536,804 9,603,080 9,727,804
Expenses:
Administration 3,345,813 3,698,237 - -
Police 11,431,207 8,462,001 - -
Fire 8,727,953 5,930,403 - -
FPublic sendces 8,157,650 6,656,885 - -
interest on long-term debt 1,110,830 768,415 135,024 205,451
t.oss on disposal of assets - - - -
Water and sewer senvices - - 8,278,424 7,733,558
Golf Course - - 1,197,396 1,243,317
Total expenses 32,773,153 25,525,031 9,610,844 9,182,326
Increase in net position before
transfers and other expenses 7,902,685 14,011,773 (7,754) 545,478
Transfers {100,000) {100,000) 100,000 100,000
Increase in net position 7,802,685 13,911,773 92,246 645,478
Net position - July 1 125,762,874 132,539,139 34,445,759 35,758,816
Prior period adjustment - (20,688,038) - {1,958,635)

Net position - June 30 $

133,665,559 §

125,762,874 $

34,538,005 $ 34,445,759

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by
$7.8 million, thereby accounting for 98.83% of the total growth in net position. Key
elements of this growth are as follows:

¢ Taxes increased $.5 million over fiscal year 2015. The payroll tax position
increased by $581,811 during 2016 as a result of improved economic
conditions and increased economic development. In addition, the City also
experienced a rebound in 2016 with occupational license fees increasing by
$129,802. The insurance premium tax had been increasing for the last few
years experienced a decline as a result of a decline of insurance policies in
effect within the City limits. It decreased by $201,719. The City's property tax
revenues increased due to a slight improvement in assessed values. The
property tax revenue increased by $118,395 despite relatively little new



property being developed and not raising of the tax rate for the sixth straight
year in a row. Capital grant revenue decreased by $320,275 as a result of the
grants for various road and sidewalk projects coming to an end. Operating grant
revenue remained relatively the same as a result of the SAFER grant awarded
to hire six additional firefighters for both years.

There was an increase of $7,248,122 for governmental activities as a result of
various infrastructure projects during the year and the second year entries to
record the GASB 68 pension liability changes that had a significant impact due
to the increase in the liability this year over the preceding year,

Revenues by Source - Governmental Type Activities

Charges for

Services
$5,063,897 Operating Grants
12% and
Other Contributions
$1,104,790 31,032,218

3%

Capital Grants
and
Contributions
$2,237,653
5%

Taxes
$31,237,280
77%

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City's net position by
$92,248, accounting for 1.17 percent of the total growth in the government's net
position. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

In reviewing the net (expense)/revenue, the water and sewer sales and service
function showed net income for the year of $151,583. The income was
attributable to operations due to a four percent increase in rates implemented
the last several years. The last rate increase was on April 1, 2013. In addition,
expenses increased by $488,369 due to higher wage and benefit costs, higher
pension expense due to the increase in the liability and an increase in water
purchasing costs. '

The golf course fund showed a net loss for the year of $59,337 as a result of
operations and interest expense. The loss was the result of a decrease in
revenues of $43,230 due to the wet spring. Operating expenses increased
slightly by $10,109 due to personnel costs and increasing maintenance issues.
In addition, an operating transfer was made during the year as a result of the
ongoing debt service commitments.
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Revenues by Source - Business Type Activities

Sewer Charges _,
23.39%

- Golf Course
11.50%

.Other Charges
3.83%

.. Transfers
1.03%

Water Charges
60.24%

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net
resources availabie for spending at the end of a fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's government funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $75,419,592, an increase of $8,721,222 in comparison with
the prior year. Approximately 73.91 percent of this total amount constitutes unassigned
fund balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion, The
remainder of the fund balance is classified as nonspendable, committed to or assighed
to indicate that it is not available for new spending because of constraints that have
been placed on the use of these resources for specific purposes either internally or
externally. :

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $55,741,050 while total fund
balance was $63,345,677. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be
useful to compare unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 196.96 percent of total general
fund expenditures and transfers, while total fund balance represents 223.83 percent of
that same amount, '
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The fund balance of the City's general fund increased by $6,732,983 during the current
fiscal year. Key factors in this growth are as follows:

¢ Payroil taxes, property taxes and occupational licenses made a recovery and
produced results stronger than originally anticipated

e Insurance premium tax experienced a trivial decline in the current year

e The City enacted payroll and insurance premium tax increases on July 1, 2007
that were part of a long-range plan. This enactment has continued to enable the
City to build reserves,
No major construction projects were done in the current fiscal year.

« Operating expenditures are continuing to increase as a result of higher wages,
benefit costs and additional personnel in the fire and police departments.

The municipal aid road/LGEA fund has a total fund balance of $1,103,972, all of which
is restricted for street improvements and snow removal expenditures. The net
decrease in fund balance during the year was the result of an increase in the dollar
amount of street projects budgeted for the current vear and a decrease in revenues
due to the decline in fuel prices producing less gas tax revenue to be distributed. The
infrastructure fund had a total fund balance of $9,138,011. The fund balance increased
during fiscal year 2016 due to a transfer in of $2.0 million for the Florence Heights
project that has not been mostly completed. An additional transfer of $1.5 million was
made for a future capital project. The asset forfeiture fund had an increase in fund
balance of $38,460 as a result of increased expenditures for the shooting range and
equipment purchases. The aquatic center fund had a fund balance increase of $82,507
after a transfer in from the General Fund of $200,000. A secondary reason for the
increase was the result of a switch in the management contract lowering the center's
costs,

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the water and sewer service fund at the end of the year
amounted to $6.463,172 and those for the golf course operations amounted to
$746,850. The growth in net position for the water and sewer fund was $151,583 and
the net loss in the golf course fund was $59,337. Other factors concerning these two
funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City's business-type
activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the general fund budget two
times. The budget amendments were to adjust the beginning fund balance to actual
and to increase/decrease revenues and expenditures to more closely reflect the
anticipated actual revenues and expenditures for the year based on prior year results
and current year developments,

In particutar, during the first amendment, capital line items were adjusted to include
additional carryover amounts from the 2015 budget for projects that were started but
not completed by June 30, 2015. in addition, there was an amount that was added to
the Fire Depariment for pension expenditures related to military leave of personnel. All
beginning fund balance amounts were adjusted to reflect the ending balances from the
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prior June 30 per the audit report.

The second amendment basically adjusted General Fund grant revenue for a grant
received to purchase fire equipment. In addition, the amendment adjusted expenditure
line Hems in the police department for the addition of a drug task force unit and
unscheduled overtime in the fire department. The public services budget was adjusted
for some mechanical and maintenance issues. In addition, a line item was added for
the demolition of a nuisance hotel in the City limits. These costs will be recovered when
the land is sold. The Golf Course budget was amended to incorporate costs for
irrigation and maintenance issues as well.

All of the general fund department’s actual results came in under the final budgeted
amounts. All departments were under budget in the salaries, pension costs and health
insurance line items. Travel and training, community relations and supply reductions in
each depariment also contributed to lower than budgeted amounts. Motor fuel costs
aiso came in under budget in all of the departments due to the decrease in the cost of
a barrel of oil. The overall philosophy implemented in-previous years to only make
necessary purchases continues to contribute to lower expenditures throughout the City
departments.

The current year budget relied on the expectation of relatively flat property tax revenue
and slight increases for payroll tax, occupational license fees and insurance premium
tax revenues. The property tax, occupation license fees and the payroll tax all resulted
in higher than anticipated amounts. Final actual revenue categories exceeded final
budgeted revenue amounts by $2,577,007. This was due to the growth in the revenue
for the above mentioned categories as well as interest income. Actual expenditures
and transfers came in $2,274,478 over the budget amounts. The departments
continued to monitor expenditures during the year and some minor capital tasks were
not being completed by June 30. However, the City made a year-end transfer to the
Infrastructure Fund for a future capital project. Despite the year-end transfer, the City's
excess revenues, operational expenditure controls and capital improvements not being
completed, the City ended the year with a fund balance that was $302,529 greater than
what was budgeted.

DEBT AND CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION

Long-term Debt

At year-end, the City had $18,985,000 in outstanding bonds compared to $21,590,000
last year. That is @ decrease of $1,605,000 or 7.43 percent as shown in the following
table:

Governmental Business-typs
Activities Activities Totals
2018 2015 2016 2015 2018 2015
Bonds payable :
Chiigaticns
(backed by )
fee revenues) § . 3 - $ 1,810,000 § 2,020,000 § 1,810,600 3 2,020,000
Bonds payable
(backed by city} 17,795,000 18,840,000 380,000 730,000 18,175,000 18,570,000
Totals $ 37795000 § 18840000 3 2190000 5 2,750,000 $  19,985000 $ 21,590,000
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Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note E on pages
43-47 of this report.

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2018, the capital assets amounted to $242 million invested in capital
assets which include land, water and sewer systems, equipment, vehicles, buildings,
park facilities, roads and sidewalks. This represents a net increase of $7.5 million, or
3.18 percent, over last year due to the investment in street projects, storm water
projects, a new fire substation and water and sewer infrastructure improvements. The
increase can also be attributed to the replacement of vehicles and equipment during
the fiscal year,

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
2016 2015 2016 2015

Noet being depreciated:
Land 3 10817492 $ 10617492 § 4,785,542 % 4,785,542
Construction in progress 3,808,124 2,391,326 108,810 52,783
Other capital assets

being depreciated:
Improvements 19,480,718 18,318,619 616,231 581,199
Water and sewer system - - 45,630,112 44,902,182
infrastructure 112,255,371 108,486,352 - -
Buildings 23,338,855 23,338,855 4,200,497 4,200,497
Computer upgrade - - 56,398 56,396
Water meters - - - 1,830,568 1,612,748
Machinery and equipment 4,808,324 4,624,861 2,011,051 1,857,866
Vehicles 6,908,398 7.042 563 1,302,414 1,036,775

Subtotal 181,217,282 174,820,068 60,342,719 59,185,968

Accumulated

depreciation (96,535,647) _ (92,512,321) _ (30,615,129)  (28.939,541)

TOTALS $ 84681635 $ 82307747 $ 29,727,600 % 30,246 427
This year's major additions included:
Business-type activities;
Water and sewer system improvements paid for with system revenues $ 627,530
Governmental-type activities:
The purchase of equipment and vehicles with general fund revenues. 758,639
fmprovements and street projects paid for with state and federal grant funds

and general fund revenues. ' 7,005,894

5 __ 5392563
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Additional information on the City’'s capital assets can be found in Note D on pages 42-
43 of this report,

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The upcoming budget brings with it a continuing conservative approach for the revenue
amounts. The City of Florence has experienced some economic growth during the last
two years and seems to have had a slight recovery in the areas of payroll tax and
insurance premium taxes during the current fiscal year, The City has been successful
in dealing with budget realities in a positive manner to remain financially sound. The
budget for the 2017 fiscal year calls for core revenues remaining consistent with actual
results for fiscal year 2016. It is anticipated that property tax revenue will remain
constant with the level experienced during the prior fiscal year and that Council will not
adopt a property tax increase for the seventh year in a row. The City expects slight
growth in the remainder of the core revenue line items. The City has taken an
extremely conservative approach to our expenditures to be able o continually provide
the highest level of service for the residents, The City will once again reinforce the
philosophy about only purchasing that which is deemed to be a necessity. The City will
experience some growth with due to a few development projects in the beginning
stages. The rising cost of all types of insurance, including liability, workers
compensation, and health and dental continues to be an annual struggle. In addition,
health care reform costs, state mandated retirement contributions and rising utility
costs are continuing to increase the annual growth of the City's expenditures. The City
is constantly looking for ways to operate the departments more efficiently and
effectively. In addition, some changes have been made to the employee bensfits fo
assist in curtailing personnel cost increases in the future.

Funds have been identified in the budget for the partial construction of infrastructure on
a 65 acre site designated for retail development. This site will host a Menard's, Costco
and several other retail and dining establishments.

The City continues to implement its annual plan to upgrade the City's infrastructure.
Contractors were hired and are replacing certain sidewalks and curbs and are repaving
City streets. The City has continuing plans to upgrade the water and sewer system as
well as the storm water infrastructure during the upcoming vear.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and
creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or

need additional financial information, contact the Administrative Office or the
Department of Finance at 8100 Ewing Boulevard, Florence, Kentucky.

Richard J. Lunnemann Linda J. Chapman CPA

City, Coordinator CFO/HR Cé,r—v
%Oé/ Odé/wﬂ&ma&'pcw 5

23



ASBETS

Cash and cash eguivalents

investments

Receivables:
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Accrued interest
Accounts

Internal balances

inveniories

Prepaids

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Land
Construction in progress
Systems
improvements
infrastructure
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Water meters
Vehicles

Total assets

Deferred charges on refunding
Deferred outflows from net pension liability
Contributions subseauent to the
measurement date
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Customer deposits
General obligation bonds payable - current
Revenue bonds payable - current
Compensated absences - current
Net pension lability
Compensated absences
General obligation bonds payable
Revenue bonds payable

Total abilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows from net pension iiability
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assels
Unrestricted
Total net position

Primary Government

Capital assets(net of accumulated depreciation)

DEFERRED OQUTFLOWS OF RESCURCES

zovernmental Business-type '

Activities Activities Total
74,611,054 7,283,630 % 81,854,684
10,263,370 - 10,263,370
89,423 - 889,423
1,221,725 - 1,221,725
76,298 - 76,298
5178177 1,382,278 6,560,455

23,796 {23,798) -

139,789 246,767 386,558
538,836 84,317 623,253
103,661 1,024,264 1,127,925
10,617,492 4,785,642 15,403,034
3,808,124 109,910 3,918,034
- 20,408,775 20,408,775
10,163,581 163,104 10,326,685
44,145,311 - 44,145 311
13,234,472 3,180,326 16,414,798
1,223,763 - 1,223,763
- 660,845 660,845
1,488 8582 419,088 1,807,881
176,927 864 39,725,051 216,652 915
320,503 208,648 530,151
3,088,490 237,595 3,337,085
1,904,511 163,330 2,067 841

5 324 504 610,573 93D,
1,264,858 335,401 1,600,258
487,732 249,742 717,474
83,433 20,007 103,530
16,029 - 16,029
- 299,097 299,097
1,060,000 380,000 1,440,000
- 215,000 215,000
720,934 62,918 783,852
27,114,290 2,512,448 29,626,738
16,735,000 - 16,735,000
- 1,595,000 1,595,000
47 462 276 5,669,703 53,131,879
1,224,533 127,916 1,352,449
66,566,132 27,327,943 93,804,075
66,996,427 7,210,062 74,209,489
133,565,550 § 34538006 5 168,703,564

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY‘*-’“”

BALANCE SHEFT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNBS
June30, 2016 S e
Other Total
Governmental Gaovernmental

General Funds Funds
ASSETS )
Cash and cash eguivalents % 48,093,152 § 11,414,664 § 58,507,818
investments 10,263,370 - 10,263,370
Inventorigs 65,691 74,098 138,789
Receivables:

Property taxes 89,423 - 89,423

Intergovernmental 89,806 1,131,918 1,221,728

Accrued interest 76,298 - 76,288

Accounts 5,178,177 - 5178177
Prepaids 538,936 - 538,936
Due from other funds - 287,932 287,932
Resfricted assets:

Cash 103,661 - 103,661
Total assets $ 64,498,514 § 12908613 & 77,407,127
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES i i
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 318,517 & 834,658 § 1,150,215

Accrued liabilities 487,732 - 467,732

Due to other funds 264,136 - 264,136

Uneamed revenue 5,890 - 5,890

Toial liabilites 1,053,275 834,688 1,887,973
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOQURCES
Unavailable revenue-property taxes 89,423 - 89,423
Unavailable revenue-employee receivable 10,139 - 10,139
Total deferred inflows of resources 09 582 - 49 562
Fund balances:

Nonspendable:

Inventories 65,691 74,098 139,789
Prepaids 538,936 - 538,936

Restricted:

Street resurfacing . 1,029,874 1,029,874

Cammitted to:

Economic stabilization 5,000,600 - 5,000,000
Equipment replacement 2,000,000 “ 2.000,000
Assigned to:
Capiial projects - 9,138,011 5,138,011
Law enforcement - 379,783 374,783
Aquatic center - 1,452,149 1,482,149
Unassigned: 55,741,050 - 55,741,050
Total fund balances 53,345 877 12,073,915 75,419,592
Totai kabilities and fund balances $ 64,498 514 § 12808613 § 77,407,127
Total governmental fund balances $ 75,419,592
Armounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reporied in the funds,
net of acoumnulated depreciation $96,535,647. 84,681,835
Otnher long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expendilures and therefore are deferred in the funds. 89,423

An internal service fund is used by managament to charge certain costs such as
health and dental insurance to certain funds. The assets and liabilities

of the internal service fund must be added to the stalement of net assets. 14,988,595
Contributions subsequent to net pension Rability measurement date 1,904,511
Net pension liability outflows carried as deferred charges 3,099,480
Nei pension Eability inflows carried as deferred charges {1,224,533}
Accrued interest payable on long-term debt {83,433)
Costs of issuance of debt, premiums and discounts are currently expensed for govemmental

funds and are carrled as deferred charges in the statement of net assets. 320,503

Long-term liabifities, including notes payable, are nof due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reporiad in the funds:

Accrued absences payable : (720,834)
Net pension liability (27,114,290}
Bonds and leases payable (17,795,000)
Net position of governmentai activities 3 133,565,558

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent,
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REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Uses of property
Inferest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Administration
Police
Fire
Public services
Pebt service;
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures
Excess{deficiancy) of revenues
over{under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES(USES)
Transfers in

~{Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
$ 8,089,235 $ - 8,089,235
20,695,028 2,487,932 23,182 961
1,162,304 2,107,567 3,269,871
227,192 - 227,192
4,025 848 810,857 4,836,705
. 100,878 100,879
728,253 43,440 769,683
108,496 1,383 100,879
35,034,357 5,652,058 40,586,415
2,355 651 - 2,355,651
7,276,198 63,865 7,340,063
6,091 6557 - 6,891,587
8,205,443 7,324,954 13,530,397
1,045,000 - 1,045,000
502,525 - 502,825
24,376,374 7,388,819 31,765,183
10,657 983 {1,836,761) 8,821,222
- 3,825,000 3,825,000
(3,925,000 - (3,925,000
{3,825,000) 3,825,000 (100,000}
6,732,983 1,888,239 8,721,222
56,612,694 10,085,676 66,698,370
$ 63,345677 5 12,073,915 75,419,592

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY -

RECONCILIATION OF THE STA TEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES. AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF' GOVERNMEN TAL FUNDS TO THE )

STA TEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016.

_|Netchange in fund balances-total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets

is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense:
Capital asset purchases capialized
Depreciation expense

Change due to fixed asset retirements

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not praovide current fin-
ancial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This is
the change in the amount through the year.

Government funds report the effect of issuance cost, premiums, discounts
and similar items when the debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.

Government funds report the effect of net pension liability reported
deferred inflows and outflows

Government funds report the effect of net pension liability expenses based
on proportionate share of service cost and calculated pension costs from
measurement date to measurement date.

Repayment of bond and lease principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term lia-
bilities in the statement of net assets.

Accrued interest on iong-term debt is reported in the government-wide
financial statements and nof reported in the governmental funds. This
is the change in the amount of interest accrued through the year,

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs
of certain activities, such as health and dental insurance to individual
funds, The net revenues(expenses) of the internal service fund

is reported with governmentat activities.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds such as compensated absences.

Change in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staterment,

$

$

8,721,222

7,764,633
(5,133,322)

{63,813)

89,423

(20,525)

(366,828)

(223,485)
(4,124,846)

1,045,000

2,833

87,947

24,448
7,802,685
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STATEMENT OF NET POSI TION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2016 ‘ o
Governmential
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities
Water and Health
Sewer Golf Total and
ASSETS Service Course Gurrent Year Dental
Current asseis:
Cash and cash equivalenis 3 6,598,326 % 685,304 % 7,283,630 % 15,103,238
Accounts receivable 1,378,778 2,500 1,382,278 -
inventories 158,665 90,102 246,767 -
Frepaids 78,221 6,096 84,317 -
Total cwrrent assets 8,212 990 784,002 8,096,992 15,103,238
Nenhcurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,024,264 - 1,024,264 -
Capital assets {net of accumulated
depreciation)
Construction in progress 108,910 . 109,910 -
Land - 4,785,542 4,785,542 -
improvements - 163,104 163,104 -
Systems and equipment 20,218,544 190,231 20,408,775 -
Water meters 660,845 - 660,845 -
Building 2,736 3,177,590 3,180,326 -
Vehicles 419,089 - 419,089 -
Total noncurrent assets 22,435,388 8,316,467 30,751,855 -
Total assets 30,648,378 9,100,489 39,748 847 15,403,238
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on refunding 176,952 32,606 209,648 -
Deferred outflows related o pension liability 237,595 - 237,595 -
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 163,330 “ 163,330 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 577,877 32,666 510,573 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 315,875 19,526 335,401 114,643
Accrued liabilities 170,920 78.822 249,742 -
Compensated absences 62,918 - 62,918 -
Accrued interest payable 15,941 4 156 20,097 -
Due to other funds 23,796 - 23,796 -
Customer deposits 299,097 - 289,097 -
Bonds payable-current 215,000 380,000 585,000 -
Total current labilities 1,103,547 482 504 1,586,051 144,643
Noncurrent fiabilities:
Compensated ahsences - - - -
Net pension iiability 2,512,448 - 2,512,448 -
Revenue bonds payable 1,585,000 - 1,595,000 -
Total noncurrent liabiiities 4,107,448 - 4,107 448 -
Totai liabilities 5,210,995 482,504 5,693,499 114,643
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred inflows refated to pension lighility 127,816 - 127,916 -
NET POSITION
Net investments in capital assets 19,424,172 7,903,771 27,327,843 -
Unrestricted 6,463,172 748,890 7,210,062 14,988,595
Total net position 3 25887344 § 8,650,661 3 34538006 % 14,988,595

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY.
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENSES AND CHANGES iN NET PQS!TION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

JOPERATING REVENUES

Charges for sales and services:

Water fees

Sewer charges
Penaities

Tap in fees

Meter instzllations
Qther service charges
Golf course revenues
Other services
Miscetlaneous

Total operating revenues

|OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

(INET OPERATING INCOME(L.OSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
interest income
Interest expense

Total non-operating income

_[Transfers
NET INCOME(LOSS)

NET POSITION-BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION-END OF YEAR

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Governmantal
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities
Water and Health
Sewer Golf Totals and
Service Course Current Year Dental
3 5824078 % - % 5824078 § -
2,280,943 - 2,260,943 -
100,923 - 100,923 -
107,370 - 107,370 -
70,798 - 70,798 -
61,140 - 61,140 -
- 1,412,149 1,112,148 -
- - - 2,684,776
30,351 - 30,351 -
8,455,603 1,112,149 9,567,752 2,694,776
6,793,235 800,968 7,694,203 2,606,829
1,485,188 296,428 1,781,617 “
8,278,424 1,187,396 9,475,820 2,608,829
177,179 {85,247) 91,932 87,047
32,278 3,062 35,338 60,145
(57,872) (77,1582) (135,024) -
{25,596) (74,080} {99,686) 60,145
- 100,000 100,000 -
151,583 (569,337) 02,246 148,082
25,735,761 8,709,998 34,445 759 14,840,503
$ 25887344 % 8650661 % 34538005 §% 14,988,595
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS -
For the Year Ended June 30,2016 RPN
Governmantal
Business-type Activilies-Enterprise Funds Activities
Water and Health
Sewer Golf Totals and
Service Course Current Year Dentat
Cash flows from operating activities;
Cash received from customers $ B,621,014 % 1,111,728 3% 8,732,742 &% 2,694,778
Cash paid to suppliers (4,179,935) (551,877) (4,731,812) (2.650,073)
Cash paid to employess (1,887,592} {338,383) (2,223,975) -
Net cash freom{used by) operating activities 2,853 487 223,468 2,776,955 44,703
Cash flows from noncapitat financing activities:
Transfer from other funds - 104,000 100,000
Net cash from{used by} noncapital financing activities - 100,000 100,000 -
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
- Acquisition of capital assets (1,789.827) (74,900} (1,864,727} -
. Transfers to Bong Fund ‘ 419,161 - 419,161
inferest paid on capital debt (59,395) ‘ (31,938) {91,333) -
Principal paid on debt {210,000) (350,000) (560,000} -
Net cash from{used by) finanging activities {1,640,061) (456,838) {2.096,809) -
Cash flows from investing aclivities:
tnterest income 32,276 3,082 35,338 80,145
Net cash provided by investing activities 32,278 3,062 35,338 60,145
Net increase(decrease) in cash 945,702 {130,308} 815,394 104,848
Cash at beginning of year 6,676 888 815,612 7,482 500 14,898,380
Cash at end of yaar $ 7,622,590 3 685,304 % 8,307,884 § 15,103,238
Reconciliation of operating inceme to net cash used
by operating aclivities:
Operating income(ioss) 5 177,179 § (85,247} § 91,832 3 87,947
Adjustments to recongite operating income
to net cash provided{used) by
operating activities: .
Depreciation expense 1,485,189 296,428 1,781,617 -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease(increasa) in accounts receivable 165,414 (421) 164,980 -
Decrsase(increase) in prepaid expenses {26,433) 2,856 {23.577) -
Decrease(increase)} in inventory (658 15,630 14,971 -
increase{decreasa) in accounts payable 15,959 (10,507} 5452 (43,244)
Increase{decraase) in accrued fabilities 87,756 4,729 92,485 -
increase {(decrease) in net pension Hability 613,784 - 613,784 -
Increase(decraase) in due to other funds 6,224 - 8,224 -
Increase(decrease) in customer deposits 29,077 - 28,077
Net cash used by operating activities 5 2,653,487 § 223,468 % 2,776,955 § 44,703

Noncash investing, capital and financing activitias:

Ingrease In fair value of investments - -
Borrowing under capital lease . .
Contributlons of capital assets from government - -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016 R S e

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Florence, Kentucky, have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting policies of the City are described below,

Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Florence is a municipality operating under a Mayor/Council form of government,
Legislative authority is vested in the six City Council members. As required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements
present the government and its component units, entities for which the government is
considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although lsgally separate
entities are, in substance, part of the government's operations and so data from these units are
combined with data of the primary government. Each blended component unit of the City has a
June 30 year end. The component units discussed below are included in the City's reporting
entity because of the significance of its operational and/or financial relationship with the City.

Included within the Reporting Entity:

City of Florence Municipal Properties Corporation

The City of Florence Municipal Properties Corporation was formed to act as an agent and to be
instrumental in the financing of public improvements and projects of a capital nature for the City
and for the particular purpose of acquiring real estate located within the City and constructing,
acquiring and equipping thereon capital improvements, facilities, buildings, structures and
related appurtenances. The Corporation finances these projects by the issuance of debt.
These debt issues are secured by (1) first mortgage liens on the projects, and (2) lease and
option agreements between the Corporation and the City, the construction agreements and
pledged receipts. The lease and option agreements require the City to pay rental from specified
revenues, on a yearly basis with the option to renew each year. If the City renews the lease
from year-to-year, and pays the rentals for each year as stipulated, and when the Corporation
has fully paid and retired all the bonds, the Corporation agrees it will convey the properties to
the City free and clear. '

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement
of changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statemments. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to
a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016

meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-wide
financial statements, rather than reported as an expenditure, Proceeds of long-term debt are
recorded as a lability in the government-wide financial statements, rather than as an other
financing source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness of the reporting government
are reported as a reduction of the related liability, rather than as an expenditure.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund financiaf
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period, Expenditures generally are
recorded when a fiability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, payroll fees, insurance license fees, occupational license fees and interest are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues in the current
fiscal year. All other revenue items are considered recorded as revenue when the funds have

been received,

The government reports the following funds of the financial reporting entity:
The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except for those required to be accounted for in another

fund.

The municipal aid road/LGEA fund is used to account for funds received from the state for road
improvements and snow removal.

The infrastructure fund is used to account for a designated portion of payroll taxes, storm water
fees and grants to be used for the annual repairs to the City road infrastructure and storm water
lines.

The asset forfeiture fund accounts for alf funds received from seized assets and purchases
made with those funds.

The aquatic center fund is used to account for the operations of the City's pool facility.
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating revenues
and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The government reports the following proprietary funds:

The water and sewer fund accounts for the activities of the government's water and sewer sales
and services {o residential and commercial users.

The World of Golf fund is responsible for the operations of the golf course facility.

The City’s only internal service fund is the self-insurance fund for the City’s health and dental
costs,

Assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows and nef position or equity
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term
investments with an initiai maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the City.

The City is authorized by state statute to invest in:

1. Obligations of the United States and of its agencies and instrumentalities.
2. Certificates of deposits.

3. Banker's acceptance.

4, Commercial paper.

2. Bonds of-other state or local governments.

6. Mutual funds.

investments

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72, investments
_held at June 30, 2015 are measured using quoted market prices in an active market for identical
investments.

Froperty Tax Receivable

Property taxes are levied as of January 1 on property values assessed as of the same date.
The taxes are billed on approximately October 1 and are due and payable on December 31. On
January 1, the bill becomes delinquent and penalties and interest may be assessed by the City.
A lien may be placed on the property on January 1. Total real property tax assessments were
$2,464,496,170 and tangible tax assessments were $372,591,995, . :
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Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due
from/to other funds" on the balance sheet. Short-term interfund loans are classified as "interfund
receivables/payables”.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO)
method. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when purchased.

Prepaid ltems

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2016 are
recorded as prepaid items, These prepaids are amortized over the contract period.

Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the
proprietary fund. These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the
government-wide statement of net assets. Capital assets used by the proprietary fund are
reported in the business type activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets.
The accounting and reporting treatment applied to capital assets associated with a fund are
determined by its measurement focus. General capital assets are long-lived assets of the City
as a whole. When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental
funds and capitalized (recorded and accounted for). Capital assets are defined by the City as
assets with an initial, individual minimum cost of $1,000 with a useful life in excess of two years.
Infrastructure such as streets, traffic signals and signs are capitalized. The valuation basis for
general capital assets are historical costs, or where historical cost is not available, estimated
historical cost based on replacement cost.

Capital assets used in operations are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method in the government-wide financial statements. Depreciation is charged as
an expense against operations and accumulated depreciation is reported on the respective
balance sheet. The range of lives used for depreciation purposes for each capital asset class
are as follows:

Buildings ' 30 years
Building Improvements 10-20 years
Public Domain infrastructure 25-40 vears
Vehicles 5-10 years

Office Equipment 3-10 years
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Compensated Absences

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
and sick pay benefits based upon a retirement basis. There is a liability for unpaid accumulated
sick leave since the government does have a palicy to pay specified amounts when employees
retire from service with the government. All vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in
the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of empioyee
resignations or retirements.

Long-Term Obligations

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in
the government-wide or fund financial statements,

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicabie governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of
net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance cosis, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as a liability in the fund financial
statements. The debt proceeds are reported as revenue and payment of principle and interest
reported as expenditures. The accounting for the proprietary fund is the same in the fund
statements as it is in the government-wide statements.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

in addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report as a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The government has several items that
qualify for reporting in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value if refunded debt and its reacquisition
price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or
refunding debt. The City also has deferred outflows related to the pension liability in accordance
with GASB 68. '

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government only has one type of item,
which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this
category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds
balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from one source-property
taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that
the amounts become available. The City also has deferred outflows related to the pension
liability in accordance with GASB 68, '
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Fund Balance Policies

Net position is the difference between assets and liabilities. Net position invested in capital
assets, net of related debt are capital assets, less accumulated depreciation and any
outstanding debt related to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Fund balance of the governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature
of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can
establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund
valance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

In the fund financial statements, government funds report components of fund balance for
amounts that are nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned:

Nonspendable fund balances arise when resources cannot be spent because of their form and
because resources must be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balances arise when constraints placed on the use of resources are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

Committed fund balances are those that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making
authority, which, for the City is the Council. The Council can by adoption of an ordinance prior fo
the end of the year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the
ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken to remove or revise the limitation.

Assigned fund balances are those that are intended to be used by the government for specific
purposes, but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. Council has authorized the
finance director to assign fund balance though the financial policies and procedures established.
Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words an additional
action of does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely,
additional action is essential to either remove or revise a commitment.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. The classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been
restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance). In order
to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned fund
baiance in the government fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the
order in which resources are considered to be applied. it is the government’s policy to consider
restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of
unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be
used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund
balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last,
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Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses
Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for the proprietary fund are those that result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also includes all revenue and
expenses not related to capital and related financing, non-capital financing or investing
activities.

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both
governmental and business-type activities.

in the fund financial statements, governmental funds are classified as follows:

Governmental funds — by character Current-further classified by function
Debt service
Capital outlay

Proprietary fund — by operating and non-operating

In the fund financial statements governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources.
Proprietary funds report expenses related to use of economic resources.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the County Employees Retirement System (CERS) and additions to/deductions
from CERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by CERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Inferfund Transactions

Interfund services provided/used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in
the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

Use of Estimates
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disciosures

of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenditures. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

38




CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS
June 30, 2018 '

Date of Management's Review

Subsequent events were evaluated through September 9, 2016 which is the date the financial
statements were available for review.

NOTE B-STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

A. In accordance with City ordinance, prior to June 30, the Mayor submits to the Councll, a
proposed operating budget on a basis consistent” with generally accepted accounting
principles for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them for the upcoming year.

B. By July 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

C. The City Coordinator is required by Kentucky Revised Statutes to present a quarterly report
to the Council explaining any variance from the approved budget.

0. Appropriations continue in effect until a new budget is adopted.
E. The Council may authorize supplemental appropriations during the year.

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
for all funds except the capital projects fund, which is not budgeted. Expenditures may not
'egally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level. Any revisions to the budget that
would alter total revenues of any fund and expenditures of any department must be approved by
the Councll, however, with proper approval by the City Coordinator, budgetary transfers within
departments can be made. The Council adopted two supplementary appropriation ordinances.
All appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The City Councit has adopted guidelines for maintaining a minimum general fund balance in the
amount of 17% of budgeted operating expenditures and recurring transfers. In either case,
unusuai items such as one-time expenditures shall be excluded from the calculation. In addition,
Council has adopted a resolution and established a stabilization fund balance. This fund
balance may only be used for operations to pay for expenditures when the unreserved fund
balance falls below the minimum fund balance of 17% of expenditures and recurring transfers.
Each December 31* Mayor and Council shall determine if any funds are to be transferred to
increase the stabilization fund balance.
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NOTE C-DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
dentical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs.

As of June 30, 2016, the City had the following recurring fair value measurements:

Level 1
Cash $ 81,894,684
Government obligations 1,127,925

Municipal bonds 10,263,370
Total fair value $ 93,285,978

Interest rate risk. In accordance with the City’s investment policy, interest rate risk is limited by
investing in public funds with the highest rate of return with the maximum security of principai,
lnvestments are undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure preservation of the capital in its

portfolio.

Credit risk. State law limits the types of authorized investment instruments to obligations of the
United States, its agencies, and instrumentalities. In addition, certificates of deposit or bonds of
a bank or the Commonwealth of Kentucky, securities issued by a state or local government or
shares of mutual funds are acceptable investrnents. The City's investment policy limits its
authorized investment instruments in these investments to one of the top three highest rated
categories by a nationally rated agency. As of June 30, 2018, the City's investment in
government was rated Aaa by Moody's and AAAmM by Standard & Poor's.

Concentration of credit risk. The City may not invest, at any one time, funds in any one of the
above listed categories exceeding twenty percent of the total amount of funds invested on
behalf of the City.

Custodial credit risk - deposits. For deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the City's deposits will not be returned. The City maintains deposits with financial institutions
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). As allowed by law, the
depository bank should pledge securities along with FDIC insurance at least equal to the
amount on deposit at all times. As of June 30, 2018, the City's deposits are entirely insured
and/or collateralized with securities held by the financial institutions on the City’s behalf and the
FDIC insurance.

Custodial credit risk ~ investments. For an investment, this is the risk, that in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recaver the value of its investments that
are in the possession of an outside party. The policy permits investment in U.S. Treasury
obligations and cbligations backed by the full faith and credit of the United States and in the
securities issued by certain associations and corporations established by the government of the
United States. The City had custodial credit risk at June 30, 2016 in the amount of $11,391,295
for its government obligations. The related securities totaling this amount are uninsured,
unregistered and held by various Trust departments.
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NOTE D-CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, Adjustments/ Retirements/ June 30,
2015 Additions Transfers Deletions 2016
Governmental activities:
Not being depreciated:
Land § 10617492 § - 8 -~ % - % 10617492
Construction in progress 2,381,326 4,586,290 (2,985,882) (183,610 3,808,124
Subtotal 13,008,818 4,586,290 (2,985,882) {193,610) 14,425 616
Other capital assets:
Improvements 18,318,819 054,254 207,845 - 19,480,718
infrastructure 108,486,352 1,455,450 2,778,037 (464,468) 112,255,371
Buildings 23,338,855 . - - 23,338,855
Machinery and equipment 4,624,861 378,693 - {195,230) 4,808,324
Vehicles 7,042,563 379,948 {42,396) (471,715 6,808,398
Subtotal 161,811,250 3,168,343 2,943,486 (1,131,413) 166,791,666
Accumuiated depreciation:
improvements 8,296,693 1,020,444 - - 9,317,137
Infrastructure 66,216,339 2,315,332 - {421,611) 68,110,060
Buiidings 8,321,767 782,616 - - 10,104,383
Machinery and equipment 3,289,731 479,469 - {184,639) 3,584,561
Vehicles 5,387,791 535,461 (42,396} (461,350) 5418506
Subtotai 92512,321 5133,322 (42,396) (1,067 600) 96,535,647
Net other assets 69,208,829 {1,964,879) 2,685 882 (63,813 70,258,019
Net capital assets $  B2,307.747 $ 2631311 8 - % (257,423) 3 84,681,635
*PDepreciation was charged to functions as follows:
Governmental activities:
Administration 3 2,042 348
Police 2,584 587
Fire 269,961
Public services 236,426
Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 5133322
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The following is a summary of changes in the capital assets in the proprietary funds:

Proprietary activities:

Not being depreciated:

Land $

Consfruction in progress
Subtotal

Other capital assets:

Water and sawer system

improvements

Buildings

Vehicles

Computer upgrade

Water meters

Machinery and equipment
Subtotal

Accumulated depreciation:
Water and sewer system
Improvements
Buildings
Vehicles
Computer upgrade
Water meters
Machinery and equipment
Subtotal
Net other assets
Net assets §

*Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:

Proprietary activities:
Water and sewer
Golf Course

Balance Balance
June 30, Adjustment/ June 30,
2015 Additions Transfers Deletions 2016
4,785 542 § - - $ - 4,785,542

52,763 658,253 {601,106) ~ 108,910
4,838,305 858,253 (601,108) - 4 895 452
44 902 182 126,824 601,108 - 45 630,112
581,199 35,032 - - 616,231
4,200,497 - - - 4 200,497
1,038,775 344,139 42 396 {120,898) 1,302,414
58,396 - - - 56,396
1,612,748 17,818 - - 1,630,566
1,857,866 81,555 - (28,370) 2,011,051
54,347,663 605,368 643,502 (149,266) 55,447 267
24,375,793 1,221,463 214 - 25,697,470
380,049 63,078 - - 453 127
886,154 134,017 - - 1,020,171
875,714 85,511 42,994 (120,886) 883,323
58,306 - " - 56,3986
859,309 110,321 - . ~ 968,720
1,406 036 167,227 29 {28,370} 1,634,922
28,939 541 1,781,617 43 237 (149,266) 30,615,129
25,408,122 {1,176,249) 600,265 ~ 24,832,138
30,046,427 $  (517,098) $ (5417 8 - 29,727,590

206,428

1,485,189

1,781,617

Total proprietary activities depreciation expense

NOTE E-LONG-TERM DEBT

Leases Payable

QOperating L.ease

The City leases postage machine under a noncancelable operating lease. Total costs for this
lease was $4,374 for the year ended June 30, 2016, The future minimum lease payments for

this lease are as follows:
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Year Ended

June 30 Amount
2017 $ 1,458
2018 1,458
2018 1,458
2020 -
2021

Totals 3 4374

Bonds Payable

The City issues bonds where the City pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed
assets to pay debt service. Revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2016, are as follows:

Agquatic center and skate

park projects(Series 2010) 2.00-3.875%
Land-Series 2011 refunding 2.00-3.375%
Land-Series 2012 refunding 2.00-3.80%
General obligation refunding

bonds(Series 2015) 1.00-2.50%
Public project refunding

bonds{Series 2008B) 3.20-4.00%

Proprietary Fund Debt

Water and Sewer System 1.45-2.50%
Golf Course 4.375%
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The following is a schedule of future debt service requirements to maturity at June 30, 2016 for

bonds general activities and for business acfivities.

The City's general long-term debt service requirements to maturity at June 30, 2016, are as

follows:
Fiscal Year 2010 GO Bonds 2011 GO Bonds
June 30, Principal interest Principal Interest
2017 § 255000 % 174,119 § 130,000 % 75,458
2018 260,000 168,988 130,000 72,856
2019 265,000 163,388 135,000 70,006
2020 275,000 156,625 135,000 67,506
2021 280,000 148,644 140,000 84,756
2022-2028 1,655,000 607,281 750,000 274,669
2027-2031 1,815,000 340,631 850,000 163,994
2032-2034 825,000 32,259 580,000 29,753
Total Debt Service $ 5530000 $ 1,781,915 % 2 B50,000 $ 818,996

Fiscal Year 20088 GO Bonds 2015 GO Bonds
June 30, Principal interest Principal Interest

2017 $ 105,000 $ 56,655 § 470,600 $ 108,750
2018 105,000 53,295 475,000 104,050
2019 110,000 49,835 485,000 96,925
2020 115,000 46,085 490,000 89,650
2021 120,000 42,080 500,000 79,850
2022-2026 865,000 142,075 2,650,000 243,550
2027-2028 310,000 18,800 565,000 14,125
Total Debt Service $ 1,530,000 % 408,906 $ 5835000 % 736,900

Fiscal Year 2012 GO Bonds
June 30, Frincipal Interest

2017 ] 100,000 % 70.045
2018 95,000 68,085
2018 100,000 66,145
2020 105,000 83,833
2021 105,000 80,945
2022-2026 580,000 257,363
2027-2031 685,000 152,802
2032-2034 480,000 27,740
Total Debt Service $ 2,250,000 § 787,068
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The City's pfoprietary fund debt service requirements to maturity at June 30, 2016 are as
follows:

Fiscal Year 2012 Water and Sewer System 2008A Golf Course
June 30, Principal Interest Principal interest
2017 $ 215000 § 30,324 $ 380,000 $ 16,624
2018 220,000 27,170 - -
2019 220,000 23,980 - -
2020 225,000 20,754 - -
2021 230,000 17,455 - -
2022-2024 700,000 28,371 - -
Total Debt Service $ 1,810,000 % 148,054 § 380,000 $ 16,624
Conduit Debt

The City has issued General Obligation Bonds to provide assistance to the Northern Kentucky
Area Development District for the construction of a facility deemed to be in the public interest.
The bonds are secured by the property financed. Upon repayment of the bonds ownership
transfers to the entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the City, State, nor any political
subdivision thereof, is obligated in any manner for the repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the
bonds are not reported as a liability in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30,
2018 the bonds outstanding were $2,185,000.

Changes in Governmental-Type Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in
the general long-term debt:

: Amounts
June 30, June 30, Due Within
2015 Additions Retirements 2018 One Year
Compensated

ahsences $ 745380 % 878,710 § (903,158} % 720,934 % S00,000

Bends payable:; .
Series 20088 1,830,000 - (100,000) 1,530,000 105,000
Series 2010 5,780,000 - {250,000) 5,530,000 255,000
Series 2011 2,680,000 - (130,000} 2,850,000 130,000
Series 2012 2,350,000 - (100,000) 2,250,000 100,000
Series 2015 g,100,000 - (465,000 5 635,000 470,000
Totals $ 18,585380 % 878,710 § (1,948,156) $ 18,515,934 $ 1,960,000

Compensated absences are liquidated by the general fund.
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The government-wide statement of net position includes $1,960,000 of long-term liabilities due
within one year for governmental aclivities and $695,000 for business-type activities.
Changes in Business-Type Long-Term Liabilities _

l.ong-term liability activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as
follows:

Batance Balance Amounts

June 30, June 30, Due Within

2015 Additions Retired 2016 One Year
Bonds payable-water/sewer  $ 2,020,000 § - § (210,000) $ 1,810,000 $ 215,000
Compensated absences 70,323 83,821 (101,228) 62,918 100,000
Bonds payable-golf course 730,000 - - {350,000 380,000 380,000

$§ 2820323 % 93821 §  (661,226) $§ 2252918 $ 695000

NOTE F-CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amounts, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE G-EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
County Employees Retirement System (CERS)

City employees who work at least 100 hours per month participate in the County Employess
Retirement System (CERS). Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 61.845, the
Board of Trustees of Kentucky Retirement Systems (KRS) administers the CERS.

The plan issues separate financial statements, which may be obtained by request from
Kentucky Retirement Systems, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601,

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description - CERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that
covers substantially all regular full-time members employed in non-hazardous and hazardous
positions of each county, city, and school board, and any additional eligible local agencies
elacting to participate in CERS. The plan provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits
to plan members. Retirement benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of plan members under
certain circumstances. Prior to July 1, 2008, cost-of-living (COLA) adjustments were provided
annually equal to the percentage increase in the annual average of the consumer price index for
all urban consumers for the most recent calendar year, not to exceed 5%,

Effective July 1, 2009, and on July 1 of each year thereafter, the COLA is limited to 1.5%

provided the recipient has been receiving a benefit for at least 12 months prior to the effective
date of the COLA. If the recipient has been receiving a benefit for less than 12 months prior {o
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the effective date of the COLA, the increase shall be reduced on a pro-rata basis for each
month the recipient has not been receiving benefits in the 12 months preceding the effective
date of the COLA. The Kentucky General Assembly reserves the right to suspend or reduce the
cost-of-living adjustments if, in its judgment, the welfare of the Commonwealth so demands. No
COLA has been granted since July 1, 2011,

Non-hazardous Benefits — For members who began contributing to CERS prior to September 1,
2008, final compensation represents the average fiscal year of earnings with the highest
monthly average used when calculating your retirement benefit. Final compensation is based on
the 5-high creditable compensation years with a minimum of 48 months and a minimum of five
fiscal years. Final compensation is determined by dividing the total salary earned during the 5-
high years by the number of months worked, then multiplying by twelve. Non-hazardous
members, age 65 or older, or with 27 or more years of service are eligible to retire and receive
unreduced benefits. Any non-hazardous member, age 55, with a minimum of five years of
service may retire with a reduction in benefits.

For non-hazardous members who began contributing to CERS on or after September 1, 2008,
any member age 57 or older, may retire with no reduction in benefits if the member’'s age and
years of service equal 87. In addition, a member, age 65, with at least 60 months of service may
retire with no reduction in benefits. A member, age 80 or older, with at least 120 months of
service credit may retire at any time with a reduction of benefits,

Hazardous Benefits — For members who began contributing to CERS prior to September 1,
2008, final compensation represents the average fiscal year of earnings with the highest
monthly average used when calculating your retirement benefit. Final compensation is based on
the 3-high creditable compensation years with a minimum of 24 months and a minimum of three
fiscal years. Final compensation is determined by dividing the total salary earned during the 3-
high years by the number of months worked, then multiplying by twelve. Hazardous members,
age 55 or older, or with 20 or more years of service are eligible to retire and receive unreduced
benefits. Any non-hazardous member, age 55, with a minimum of five years of service may
retire with a reduction in benefits.

For hazardous members who began contributing to CERS on or after September 1, 2008, any
member age 60 or older with 60 months or service or a member with 25 years of service, may
retire with no reduction in benefits In addition, a member, age 60, with at least 60 months of
service may retire with no reduction in benefits. A member, age 60 or older, with at least 120
months of service credit may retire at any time with a reduction of benefits,

Non-hazardous Contributions - For the year ended June 30, 2016, all plan members who began
participating before September 1, 2008, were required to contribute 5% of their annual
creditable compensation. Participating employers were required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.565(3), normal contribution and past
service contribution rates shall be determined by the Board on the basis of an annual valuation
last preceding the July 1 of a new biennium, The Board may amend contribution rates as of the
first day of July of the second year of a biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a
subsequent actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy
requirements determined in accordance with actuarial bases adopted by the Board. For the year
ended June 30, 2016, participating employers contributed 17.06% of each employee's
creditable compensation. The actuarially determined rate set by the Board for the year ended
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June 30, 2016 was 17.06% of creditable compensation. Administrative costs of Kentucky
Retirement System are financed through employer contributions and investment earnings.

In accordance with House Bill 1, signed by the Governor on June 27, 2008, plan members who
began participating on, or after, September 1, 2008, were required to contribute a total of 8% of
their annual creditable compensation. Five percent of the contribution was deposited to the
member’s account while 1% was deposited to an account created for the payment of health
insurance benefits under 26 USC Section 401(h) in the Pension Fund (see Kentucky
Administrative regulation 102 KAR 1:420E). Interest is paid each June 30 on members’
accounts at a rate of 2.5%. If a member terminates employment and applies to take a refund,
the member is entitled to a full refund of contributions and interest; however, the 1% contribution
to the 401(h) account is non-refundable and is forfeited. For plan members who began
participating prior to September 1, 2008, their contributions remain at 5% of their annual
creditable compensation. '

In accordance with Senate Bill 2 signed by the Governor on April 4, 2013, plan members who
began participating on, or after, January 1, 2014, were required to participate to the Cash
Balance Plan. The Cash Balance Plan is known as a hybrid plan because it has characteristics
of both a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Members in the plan contribute a
set percentage of their salary each month to their own account. Non-hazardous members
contribute 5% of their annual creditable compensation and 1% to the health insurance fund
which is not credited to the member's account and is not refundable. The employer contribution
rate is set annually by the Board based on an actuarial valuation. The employer contributes a
set percentage of the member's salary. Each month, when employer contributions are received,
an employer pay credit is deposited to the member's account. A member's account is credited
with a 4% employer pay credit. The employer pay credit represents a portion of the employer
contribution,

Contributions to the non-hazardous pension plan from the City were $686,825 for the year
ended June 30, 2016.

Hazardous Contributions - For the year ended June 30, 2016, all plan members who began
participating before September 1, 2008, were required to. contribute 8% of their annual
creditable compensation. The state was required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate.
Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.565(3), normal contribution and past service
contribution rates shall be determined by the Board on the basis of an annual valuation last
preceding the July 1 of a new biennium. The Board may amend contribution rates as of the first
day of July of the second year of a biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent
actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements
determined in accordance with actuarial bases adopted by the Board. For the year ended June
30, 2018, participating employers contributed 32.95% of each employee's creditable
compensation. The actuarially determined rate set by the Board for the year ended June 30,
2016 was 32.95% of creditable compensation, Administrative costs of KRS are financed through
employer contributions and investment earnings.

In accordance with House Bill 1, signed by the Governor on June 27, 2008, plan members who
began participating on, or after, September 1, 2008, were required to contribute a total of 9% of
their annual creditable compensation. Eight percent of the contribution was deposited to the
member’s account while 1% was deposited to an account created for the payment of health
insurance benefits under 26 USC Section 401(h) in the Pension Fund (see Kentucky
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Administrative regulation 102 KAR 1:420E). Interest is paid each June 30 on members’
accounts at a rate of 2.5%. If a member terminates employment and applies to take a refund,
the member is entitled to a full refund of contributions and interest; however, the 1% contribution
to the 401(h) account is non-refundable and is forfeited. For plan members who began
participating prior to September 1, 2008, their contributions remain at 8% of their annual
creditable compensation.

In accordance with Senate Bill 2 signed by the Governor on April 4, 2013, plan members who
began participating on, or after, January 1, 2014, were required to participate to the Cash
Balance Plan. The Cash Balance Plan is known as a hybrid plan because it has characteristics
of both a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Members in the plan contribute a
set percentage of their satary each month to their own account. Hazardous members contribute
8% of their annual creditable compensation and 1% to the health insurance fund which is not
credited to the member's account and is not refundable. The employer contribution rate is set
annually by the Board based on an actuarial valuation. The employer confributes a set
percentage of the member's salary. Each month, when employer contributions are received, an
employer pay credit is deposited to the member's account. A member's account is credited with
a 7.5% employer pay credit. The employer pay credit represents a portion of the employer
contribution,

Contributions to the hazardous pension plan from the City were $2,559,626 for the year ended
June 30, 2016.

Insurance Benelits

Plan Description - The Kentucky Retirement Insurance Fund (Fund) was established to provide
hospital and medical insurance for members receiving benefits from KERS, CERS and SPRS.
The Fund pays a prescribed contribution for the whole or partial payment of required premiums
to purchase hospitai and medical insurance. The Fund pays the same proportion of hospitai and
medical insurance premiums for the spouse and dependents of retired hazardous members
killed in the line of duty.

Insurance Benefits -~ For members participating prior to July 1, 2003, the amount of contribution
paid for hospital and medical insurance is based on the years of service and respective
percentages of the maximurn contribution as follows:

Years of Service % Paid by Insurance Fund
20 or More 100%
15-19 75%
10-14 50%
4.9 : 25%
Less than 4 0%

As a result of House Bill 290 (2004 Kentucky General Assembly), medical insurance benefits
are calculated differently for members who began participating on, or after, July 1. 2003. Once
members reach a minimum vesting period of ten years, non-hazardous employees whose
participation began on, or after, July 1, 2003 earn $10 per month for insurance benefits at
retirement for every year of earned service without regard to a maximum dollar amount.
Hazardous employees whose participation began on, or after, July 1, 2003 earn $15 per month
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for insurance benefits at retirement for every year of earned service without regard to a
maximum dollar amount. Upon death of a hazardous employee, the employee's spouse
receives $10 per month for insurance benefits for each year of the deceased employee's earned
hazardous service. This dollar amount is subject to adjustment annually based on the retiree
cost of living adjustment (COLA), which is updated annually due to changes in the Consumer
Price Index for all urban consumers. This benefit is not protected under the inviolable contract
provisions of the Kentucky Revised Statute 16.652, 61.692 and 78.852. The Kentucky General
Assembly reserves the right to suspend or reduce this benefit if, in its judgment, the welfare of
the Commonwealth so demands.

Insurance Contributions - In prior years, the employer's required medical insurance contribution
rate was being increased annually by a percentage that would result in advance-funding the
medical liability on an actuarially determined basis using the entry age normal cost method
within a 20-year period measured from 1987. In November 1992, the Board of Trustees adopted
a fixed percentage contribution rate and suspended future increases under the current medical
premium funding policy until the next experience study could be performed. In May 1996, the
Board of Trustees adopted a policy to increase the insurance contribution rate by the amount
needed to achieve a target rate for the full entry age normal funding within 20 years.

KRS commenced self-funding of healthcare benefits for its Medicare eligible retirees on January
1, 2006. A self-funded plan is one in which KRS assumes the financial risk for providing
healthcare benefits to its retirees. The sslf-funded plan pays for claims out-of-pocket as they are
presented instead of paying a pre-determined premium to an insurance carrier for a fully-insured
plan. KRS funds the risk of its self-insured program directly from its insurance assets.

On August 6, 2012, the board voted to cease self-funding of healthcare benefits for most KRS
Medicare eligible retirees. The Board elected fo contract with Humana Insurance Company to
provide healthcare benefits to KRS’ retirees through a fully-insured Medicare Advantage Plan.
The Humana Medicare Advantage Plan became effective January 1, 2013.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related fo Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the City reported a liability of $7,395,498 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability for non-hazardous and $22,231,240 for hazardous. The City's net pension
liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, the City's proportion was 0.17 percent for
non-hazardous and 1.45 percent for hazardous.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $1,752,889 for non-

hazardous and $4,261,671 for hazardous. At June 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows
or resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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GENERAL WATER AND SEWER
Deferred Outfiows Deferred Inflows  Deferred Outflows Deferred inflows
of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources
Cifference between expected and '
actual experience $ 418,730 $ - 18,717 4 -
Change in assumplions 1,930,672 - 202,846 -

Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pensicn

plan investments 146 693 ' 1,222,963 18,032 127,107
Changes in propertion and difference

between City contributions and

proportionate share

of contributions 603,395 1,570 - B0
City contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 1,904,514 - 163,330 -

Totat $ 5,004,001 § 1,224,533 3 400,925 § 127,916

The $1,904,511 and $163,330 reported as deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions
resulting from the City's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized
as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts
reported as deferred outffows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

General General Water and sewer
Year Ended Hazardous Non-Hazardous Non-Hazardous
June 30 nflows Outflows Inflows Qutflows Inflows Qutflows
2017 $ 325355 § 650569 $ 82892 § 115,304 % 42 571 § 59,398
2018 325,355 859,569 82,692 115,304 42 571 59,398
2019 325,358 659,569 82,692 115,304 42,571 59,388
2020 - 659,569 393 115,304 203 59,308

2021 . - - - - -
Totals $ 076,085 $ 2,538,276 $ 248460 $  4B1.296 $ 127,098 $ 237507

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015 actuarial vaiuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement.

Inflation 3.25 percent
Salary increases 4.0 percent, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.5 percent, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation

The Mortality Table for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality table projected with
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Scale BB to 2013 multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females. The rates of mortality
healthy retired members and their beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000
Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 muitiplied by 50% for males and
30% for females and setback one year for females. For disabled members, the RP-2000
Combined mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 setback four years for males is used
for the period after disability retirement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 - June 30, 2013.

The long-term expected return on system assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience
studies prepared every five years. The most recent analysis, performed for the period covering
fiscal years 2008 through 2013, is outlined in a report submitted April 30, 2014. Several factors
are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption including long-term
historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-normal distribution analysis
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return and net of
investment expense) were developed by the investment consultant for each major asset class.
These ranges were combined to produce long-term expected rate of return by weighing the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding
expected inflation. The capital market assumptions developed by the investment consultant are
intended for use over a 10-year horizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of
return for funding pension plans which cover a longer timeframe. The assumption is intended to
be a long-term assumption and is not expected to change absent a significant change in the
asset allocation, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future
years. The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class
are summarized in the following table:

Target Ltang-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Nominal Return

Combined equity 44% . 5.40%
Combined fixed income 19% 1.50%
Real return { Diversified Inflation

Strategies) 10% 3.50%
Real estate 5% 4.50%
Absolute return {Diversified

Hedge funds) 10% 4.25%
Private equity 10% 8.50%
Cash equivalent 2% -0.25%

Total 100%

Discount Rate — The discount rate determination does not use a municipal bond rate. Projected
future benefit payments for all current plan members were projected though 2117,

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that local employers

would contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of projected compensation over the
remaining 28 year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The actuarial
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determined contribution rate is adjusted to reflect the phase in of anticipated gains on actuarial
vaiue of assets over the first four years of the projection period.

Sensitivity of the Nef Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The discount rate used
to measure the total pension liability for the system was 7.5% for both, nonhazardous and
hazardous. The following presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of
percent, as well as what the systems’ net position liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point fower (6.5%) or one percentage point higher (8.5%)
than the current rate for non-hazardous and (6.5%) or one percentage point higher (8.5%) than
the current rate for hazardous ($ thousands):

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
CERS 8.50% 7.50% 8.50%
Non-hazardous $ 5488878 % 4208525 % 3,280,950
Hazardous $ 1,964 988 § 1,535,106 % 1,178,841

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CERS financial report.

NOTE H-DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Employees of the City of Florence may participate in a deferred compensation plan adopted
under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with
Respect to Service for State and Local Governments). Employees may also participate in a
Section 401(k) adopted under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code.

The deferred compensation plan is available to all employees of the City. Under the plan,
employees may elect to defer a portion of their salaries and avoid paying taxes on the deferred
portion until the withdrawal date. The deferred compensation amount is not available for
withdrawal by employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable financial

emergency.

The deferred compensation plans are administered by ICMA and Kentucky Public Employees’
Deferred Compensation Plan.

NOTE {-CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently determinable, in the opinion of the City's Aftorney, the resolution of these matters wili
not have a materially adverse effect on the financial condition of the government.

NOTE J-INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the interfund account balances is as follows:
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Due from/to other Funds
Receivable Funds(s) Payable Fund(s) Armpunt
General Water and sewer 3 23,786

infrastructure General _ (287,932)
Total $ (264,136)

Due from and due to other funds represent shori-term accounts receivable and payable. The
balances in these accounts are typically the result of time differences between the date that
goods and services were provided and when payment occurred.

Transfers infout Amount

General Municipal aid/LGEA _ 3 125,000
General Aquatic Center 200,000
General Infrastructure Fund 3,500,000
General Golf Course 160,000

Total $ 3,825 000

During the year, transfers are used to move general fund resources to previde annual subsidy to
the transit fund. For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City made the following annual transfers:

1) A transfer of $125,000 was made from the general fund to the special revenue fund for
annual funding amounts for snow removal.

2) A transfer of $200,000 was made from the general fund to the aquatic center for the
annual subsidy to support the recreation operations.

3) A transfer of $3,500,000 was made from the general fund to the infrastructure fund for
the funding of infrastructure projects. .

4) A transfer of $100,000 was made from the general fund to the golf course fund for the
annual subsidy to support the recreation operations.

NOTE K-RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts: theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The
City has obtained insurance coverage through a commercial insurance company. In addition,
the City has effectively managed risk through various employee education and prevention
programs through the efforts and cooperation of its department heads. All risk for general
liability management activities are accounted for in the General Fund. Expenditures and claims
are recognized when probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of loss can be
reasonably estimated.

The City has established a Heaith and Dental Self-insurance Fund, Employees participate in
this program and certain other medical insurance programs offered by the City. Under this
program, the first $60,000 of a participant's medical claim are payable by the health and dental
self-insurance fund. The City purchases insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by
the fund. The general fund participates in the program and makes payments to the heaith and
dental fund based on estimates of the amount needed to pay current year claims. The claims
liability of $114,643 reported in the fund at June 30, 2018, is based upon the reguirements of
GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the claims liability amount were;
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Balance at Claims and

Beginning of Changes Claims

Fiscal Year in Estimates Payments June 30,
2013-2014 % - L3 1,950,887 $ 1817047 $ 133,250
2014-2015 $ 133,250 3 2,146,750 3 2,152,226 3 127,774
2015-2016 $ 127,774 $ 2,593,698 5 2,606,829 $ 114,643

The City Attorney estimates that the amount of actual or potential claims against the City as of
June 30, 2016, will not materially affect the financial condition of the City. Therefore, the
General Fund contains no provision for estimated claims. No claim has exceeded insurance
coverage amounts in the past three fiscal years,

NOTE L - TAX ABATEMENTS

The City provides tax abatementis under three programs: the Florence Business Growth and
Development Program, the Kentucky Business Investment Program and the Kentucky Jobs
Development Act,

The Florence Business Growth and Development Program is a city initiative focused on offering
payroll tax reductions for those businesses that are willing to locate in specific outlined areas in
the City limits. The Kentucky Business Investment Program (KBI) and Kentucky Jobs
Development Act (KJDA) are state initiatives that incentivize companies to locate and create
jobs and investments in the State of Kentucky. Each agreement has specific quantitative targets
that must be achieved in the form of new jobs created or payroll wages created beg. The City
agreements are valid for a five year period whereas the State agreements can be for ten years.

The City had the following tax abatement agresments in effect during fiscal year 20186:

Taxes Abated Amount of Taxes
During the Fiscal Abated During

Purpose Year the Fiscal Year
Relocation 50% $ 19,276
Relocation 50% 10,213
Expansion 50% 33,416
Expansion 50% 5516
Relocation 50% 7,865
Total $ 76,286

NOTE M - COMMITMENTS
At June 30, 2016, the City had the following commitments with respect to the following projects:

Projacts _Commitments

Mall Road Development © $1,000,000
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles for all funds except the capital projects fund, which is not budgeted.
Expenditures may not fegally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department jevel.
Any revisions to the budget that would alter total revenues of any fund and expenditures
of any department must be approved by the Council; however, with proper approval by the
City Coordinator, budgstary transfers within departments can be made.







CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
- BUDGET AND ACTUAL-GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actuai Positive
QOriginal Final Amounts {Negative)
Budgetary fund balance, July 1 $ 52,804,865 3 56612694 $ 56,612,604 § -
Resources (inflows):
Taxes;
Property 7,100,000 7,100,600 7,356,483 256,483
Franchise 530,000 530,000 526,387 (3,613
Bank deposit 185,000 185,000 208,365 21,365
Licenses and parmits: '
Payroll license fees 13,000,000 13,000,000 13,824,508 824,508
Gross receipts license fees 2,200,000 2.200,000 2,380,422 180,422
Insurance 4,200,000 4,200,000 4,265,760 65,7680
OCther 111,000 111,000 124,339 13,339
Intergovernmentai 945,350 893,350 1,162,304 168,954
Finas and forfeitures 196,000 196,000 227,192 31,192
Charges for services 3,476,000 3,476,000 4,025,848 549,848
interest 400,000 400,000 728,253 326,253
Miscelianeous 66,000 68,000 108,496 42,496
Amounts available for appropriation 85,214,215 89,070,044 91,647,051 2,577,007
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Administration:
Personnel 996,100 896,100 978,580 18,510
Contractual - 884,000 809,780 745,877 63,908
Operating/Maintenance 441,000 441,000 462,150 (21,150)
Capital outlay 243,750 276,750 177,034 105,716
Total administration 2,564,850 2,523,630 2,355,651 167,879
Polica:
Fersonnel 6,397,000 6,589,500 6,684,454 5,046
Contractuai 35,000 35,000 31,929 3.071
Operating/Maintenance 482,100 482,100 357,040 125,060
Capital outlay 300,304 300,304 302,775 (2,471)
Total police 7,214,404 7,406,804 7,276,188 130,706
Fire:
Personna! 5,891,800 6,231,800 6,252,205 (20,405)
Contractual 139,000 139,060 81,154 57.846
Operating/Maintenance 487,000 487,000 472,140 14,860
Capital outiay . 111,000 207,000 186,058 20,042
Total fire 6,628,800 7,084,800 8,891 557 73,243
{Continued)
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL-GENERAL FUND

(Continued)

Public services:
Personnel
Coniractual
Operating/Maintenance
Capital outiay
Total public services

Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Totatl debt service

Other financing uses:
Special revenue
Enterprise fund
Total other financing uses

Totat charges to appropriations
Budgetary fund balance, June 30

3181050 $ 3,181,050 § 3082449 % 98,601
425,000 425,000 412,486 12,514
1,149,500 1,148,500 1,039,748 108,754
1,867,000 2,302,412 1,670,762 631,660
8,622,550 7,057,962 8,205,443 852,519
1,045,000 1,045,000 1,045,000 -
503,600 503,600 502,525 1,075
1,648,800 1,548,600 1,647 525 1,075
325,000 325,000 3,825,000 (3,500,000
100,000 100,000 100,000 -
425,000 425,000 3,825,000 (3,500,600,
25,004,204 26,026,808 28,301,374 (2,274,478)
60210071 § 63043748 § 63345677 § ;
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Harzardous:

Non-hazardous:
Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Portion of compensation paid for
active employees on which
contributions to the plan are based

Contributions as a percentage
of covered-empioyee payroil

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Portion of compensation paid for
active employees on which
contributions to the plan are based

Contributions as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll

$

5

$

2014 20186
745922 § 709853 $ 686,825
745,922 686,825
3048767 § 4016146 $ 4,025,038
18.89% 17.06%
2488662 § 2545784 B 2.550.626
2 488 652 2 559626
6971014 § 7419947 $  7.768.212
35.70% 32.95%
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Non-hazardous:

City's proportion of the nst
pension liability

City's proportionate share of
the net pension liability

City's covered-employee payrolf

City's proportionate share of the
net pension Hability as a percentage
of its covered-employee payroll

Pian fiduciary net position as a
parcentage of the total pension
liability

Hazardous:

City's proportion of the net
pension liability

City's proportionate share of
the net pension Habhility

City's covered-employee payroli

City's proportionate share of the
net pension lability as a percentage

~ of ifs covered-employee payrolt

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension
liability

$
$

June 30, June 30,
2014 2015
0.17% 0.17%
5584305 3 7,395,408
4,016,146 % 4,025,938
139.05% - 183.70%
66.8% 57.5%
1.38% 1.45%
16,541,007 $ 22,231,240
7,419,947 § 7,768,212
222.93% 286.18%
£3.4% 60.0%
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Valuation dates. Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of July 1% preceeding the
fiscal year end in which the contributions are reported. ‘

Changes in bensfit terms. There were no benefit changes reported in the June 30, 2015 actuarial report.

Changes in assumplions. There were changes in assumptions and methods reported in the June 30,
2015 actuarial report.
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET : T
NON-MAJOR (GOVERNMENTAL. FUNDS__: R e
June30 2016 B e R
Special Revenue Funds Total
Nonmajor
Municipal Asset Aguatic Governmental
Ajd Infrastructure Forfeiture Center Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents 3 987007 § B,496192 § 379,783 $& 1551682 % 11,414,664
Inmergovernmental receivable 55,194 1,078,725 - - 1,131,818
Due from other funds - 287,832 - - 287,632
inventory 74,098 - - - 74,098
Teial assets $ 1,116,299 § 9860,840 $ 379,783 3 1,b516B2 § 12,808,613
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Ligblities:
Accounts payable $ 12327 % 722,838 % - 3 99,533 % 834,698
Totai ligbilities 12,327 722,838 - 99 533 834,698
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories 74,098 - - - 74,088
Rerstricted.
Resurfacing - - - - -
Assigned to:
Special revenue fund 1 029,874 9,138,011 379,783 1,452,149 11,089,817
Totat fund balances 1,103,872 9,138,011 379,783 1,452,149 12,073,915
Total iabilities and fund balances $ 1,116209 3 9860849 § 379783 § 1551682 3 12808613
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REVENUES

Licenses and permits $
Intergovernmenial

Charges for services

Uses of property

Inferest

Miscellansous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current;

Police

Public Services

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over{under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Special Revenue Funds

Total

Fund balances - ending $

Nonmajor

Municipal Asset Aquatic Governmental

Aid infrastructure Forfeiture ‘ Ceanter Funds
- 3 2487932 § = % - § 2,487,932
599,400 1,608,167 - - 2,107,567
- 475,000 - 335,857 810,857
- - 100,878 - 100,879
5119 30,866 1,446 8,008 43,440
- - - 1,383 1,383
604,519 4 501,965 102,325 343,248 5,552,058
- - 63,865 - 63,865
848,353 6,015,859 - 460,742 7,324,954
848,353 6,015,859 63,865 480,742 _7,388819
(243,834} {1,513,884) 38,460 (117,493) (1,838,761)
125,000 3,500,000 - 200,600 3,825,000
125,000 3,500,000 - 200,000 3,825,000
{118,834) 1,986,106 38,460 82 507 1,988,239
1,222 806 7,151,805 341,323 1,369,642 10,085,676
1,103,872 § 9,138,011 § 379,783 § 14582149 % 12,073,815
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Budgetary fund balances, July 1
Resources {inflows):
intergovernmenial
Interest
Cther financing sources:
Transfer in
Amounts available for appropriation
Charges o appropriations {outflows).
Current;
Public services
Total
Budgetary fund balances, June 30

$

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)

1,223,268 § 1,222806 $ 1222806 $ -
740,000 740,000 599,400 (140,600)
2,200 2,200 5,119 2919
125,000 125,000 125,000 -
2,090,468 2,090,008 1,952,325 {137.681)
985,200 995 200 848,353 146,847
995 200 895,200 848,353 146,847
1,103,972 % 9,186

1095268 § 1094806 $
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Budgetary fund balances, July 1
Resources (inflows);
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
interest
Transfer in
Amounts available for appropriation
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Current:
Public services
Total
Budgetary fund batances, June 30

5

Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
5801831 $ 7,151,905 3 7,151,805 § -
2,300,000 2,300,000 2,487,932 187,932
2,443 137 3,456,137 1,508,187 (1,847,070)
475,600 475,000 475,000 -
15,000 15,000 30,868 15,868
- - 3,500,000 3,500,000
11,034,968 13,398,042 15,163,870 1,755,828
5,628,137 8,080,137 6,015,858 2,074,278
5,628,137 8,090,137 8,015,859 2,074,278
5,406,831 $§ 5307905 $ 9,138,011 § 3,830,106
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Budgetary fund balances, July 1
Resources (inflows):

Uses of property

Interest

Amounts available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Current.
Police

Total
Budgetary fund balances, June 30

$

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Aciual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
234795 % 341,323 § 341,323 § -
25,000 25,000 100,879 75,879
900 900 1,446 546
260 895 367,223 443 648 76,425
126,100 126,100 63,865 62,235
126,100 126,100 63,865 62,235
134595 § 241123 $ 379,783 % 138,860
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Budgetary fund balances, July 1
Resources (inflows):
Memberships
Daily Admissions
Programs
Concessions
Locker Rental
Interest
Miscellaneous
Other financing sources:
Transfer in
Amounts available for appropriation
Charges to appropriations (outflows);
Public services
Management contract
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Barnk service charges
Miscellaneous
Capital
Total
Budgetary fund balances, June 30

$

$

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Originéi Final Amounts {Negative)
1,316,671 § 1,369842 $ 1,369,642 3 -
45,000 45,000 47,482 2,482
220,000 220,000 259,620 39,620
25,000 25,000 23,080 (1,920)
10,000 10,000 4,383 (5,617}
800 800 1,292 492
4,700 4,700 6,009 1,309
500 500 1,383 B83
200,000 200,000 200,000 -
1,825 671 1,875,642 1,812,891 37,249
315,000 315,000 306,317 8,683
120,700 120,700 68,865 51,835
50,000 50,000 41,401 8,599
1,000 1,000 1,341 (341)
6,500 6,500 5,637 863
5,250 5,250 1,783 3,467
35,000 35,000 35,398 {3098)
533,450 533,450 460,742 72,708
1,202,221 § 1342192 § 1,452,148 § 108,957
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Florence's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements,

- note disclosures and required supplementary information says about the government's overall
financial health.

CONTENTS PAGE
Financial Trends 69
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how

the government's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 76
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's

most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 81
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability

of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the government's

ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic information 86
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the goivernment's financial activities

take place.

Operating Information ' 88
These schedules contain certain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the government's financial report refates to the
services the government provides and the activities it performs.
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CITY F FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

Governimental Activities Tax Revenues By Source
L ast Ten Fiscal Years

{modified accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

{continued)

Bank
Property Franchise Deposit
Fiscal Year Tax Tax Tax Total
2007 3 8,312 § 515 § 170 8 6,997
2008 7,074 562 181 7.817
2009 7,199 543 184 7,926
2010 7,357 579 211 8,147
2011 7,223 555 207 7,985
2012 6,881 521 193 7,685
2013 7,003 521 183 7,707
2014 7.113 562 269 7,884
2015 7,248 525 185 7,958
2018 7,357 526 2086 8,089

76




[ead jo sadA} fie 10 snjea Jaduew 4By Jo 9,001 18 Auadod sossasse Aun

14

‘enjea pessasse 000°L$ 1ad ase sajer xe] Apedoid puosied pue
00 3y 1 "sieaf o} Asens passasses st Ao ey} w Apedoid i3 1ON

VYAd Aunod sucog 13094N0S

8y 591'880°1£8°2 051°0¥0'28 G6B'16S'CLE  OVB'OLE'SLP'L 0ge'sze'oeL’y 910¢
ov'Z ViV I¥6'24L'T 000'088'vL Zr8'iSk'esE  ¥SE'/85'1eE’ L giZ'eig’iol’L Gioz
9¥'¢ 892'855'204'2 000'264'2. IGELLO0LE 169'S06'YOE’L LEC'LZ8'660°) ri0g
oy $92'600°2.9°2 000'¥SE’29 ZiL'929'e0e  0€/'8/8'262°) eyosserLL gioe
ov'e £86'766'9£9'2 000'898'v9 BEL'GZT'BLE  ZO0'OLF'PSEL Z81'596'820'L Zioe
9¥'C Z60°0€6'0£9'Z 00.'612'29 LPT'VBE'6LZ  1£6'GOZ'96E'L 809'66£'€Z0’L 102
121 A EVB'0EY'ERS'T 008'9¥¥'6G 98€'/8% /08  §B0°0LZ'STH'L Zsi'ozl'olo'l oLoe
£6°2 128°1E6'€0L'2 009°€EL'¥S z1e'9es'ece  ¥S'ShLBEYL 506'28.'v86 &800e
9¥'¢C GLO'¥L1'065'2 008'ZEL'BY Ge9'8pS'0TE 26V /06'v8E'L 899°0BE°CE6 8002
8E'¢C LIBTZY'982' ¢ 009'TL0'Zy $ C00'9LE'9PZ $ 9/6'EEL'80Z°) $ ees'o86'el8  $ L002
a1Ey anjeA, Ausdold [eay Ayadold Auedoid Apledoid 1ED )\ |BOSI-
Xe] passassy dwisxg-xe | [BUOSIS jeioIBuIon |[enuspissy _
108107 s|Gexe o] $s97 :
Biog Ausdoid jesy
Si2aj {BoSI] Us] 1587
fuedold sjgexe] jo snjep posssossy
AMONLNIN ‘FONTHOTH 40 ALD




8/

"92uUB.I0l4 Jo AUD B bl Buing sisumo Auadosd oy Aidde 1By} Justuienob Ayunos au jo esoy) ale seyes Buiddepsag (2)

uonen|eA DOSSOSSE D00 S od (L)

0¥ ¥ 0250 06L°0 0810 0s0°1L 0vS0 geg’1L 910¢
00V v 0Zc0 0610 08L0 0s0°L 0¥S0 028l G102
00¥ ¥ 0250 061°0 08L°0 0501 oyo 0 0ge’L PLOC
00y’ ¥ 0250 0610 08L0 0s0°L 0v¥g80 0ze’t £l0e
0oy g1L8°0 G6i'0 0910 ovo'L 0F9°0 0284 TARITA
0ee'y 005°0 06170 0810 0co't 0¥S°0 028l L1102
ocey 0050 061°0 08t0 0co'lL 0¥90 0eg'l 0102
0ged 0060 0810 : 0910 020t ov90 peg’l 600¢
0BSv 0890 06020 0610 0660 0080 gcli 800¢
09cv $ 02,0 ¢ 0020 $ 0610 $ 06680 $ 0990 $ 0091 $ £002
sajey Ateiqn TR CERITVETS Aunon SNOpIeZe 99U910} 4 g8 A 180si4
buiddepsag uoisusix3y auoog
pue 10810 Ajunon 80UBLI0|4 JO AYID
g0 sajey Buiddepangp sajey 1081(0]

Siea) jB5si4 usj 158

sjuswieacy) (z) Buiddepaag pue 3oeng

(1) seyey xey Ausdoig

AMONINIY ‘IONIYO1H 40 ALID




CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

Principal Property Taxpayers
June 30, 2016

Taxpaver

General Growth 3
New Plan Property Holding
Turfway Park, LLC

Dell Markeating USA

IBM Credit Corp

Siar Wetherington

Cabot Turfway Ridge 14 LLC
Trellises Kentucky

Wal-Mart Real Estate

GPT Properties Trust

Fifth Third Bank

BH Turfway, Inc

Corporex Key Partnership
Meijer Stores

Turfway Crossing

Cayton Development

Beam Associates

TOTAL

2018 2007
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxabie Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Valuation Rank Valus Valuation Rank Value
99,100,000 1 3.48% 88,100,000 1 3.85%
37,650,135 3 1.32% 39,475,000 2 1.73%
30,000,000 3 1.31%
42,802,680 2 1.51%
24,866,640 4 0.00%
23,894,000 5 0.88%
21,500,000 B 0.84%
18,410,000 7 0.68% 15,802,500 8 0.68%
18,000,000 8 0.63%
18,000,000 9 0.63%
17,700,182 10 0.62%
18,500,000 4 0.81%
15,934,000 5 0.70%
15,800,000 7 0.69%
14,950,000 8 0.65%
14,147,700 9 0.62%
12,499,000 10 0.55%
10.60% § 265208200 11.60%

§ 372973696
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
Jeing 30, 2016

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping

Governmental Unit _ Outstanding Applicable(1) Debt
Debtrepaid with property taxes: County 5 29,623,024 26.40% $ 7,820,478
Subfotal, overlapping debt ' 7,820,478
City of Florence direct debt _ 17,795,000
Totaldirect and overtapping $ 25615478

Source: Kentucky Local Debt Report ‘

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the city.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the
residents and businesses of the City of Florence. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's
ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken
into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying

the debt, of each overlapping government.

{1} The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable
percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the county's taxable assessed value that is within the
govemnment's boundaries and dividing it by the county's total taxable assessed value.
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CITY OF FLORENCE, KENTUCKY

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita
Fiscal Parsonal Median Median Unemployment
Year Popuiation (1) income (2) Income (2) Age (2) Rate (3)
2007 26710 % 1,063,762,920 % 39,452 331 4.5%
2008 27281 8 1,122,558,588 § 41,148 341 5.4%
2009 27,745 % 1,183,712,680 3% 42,664 342 8.7%
2010 28,381 3% 1,374,860,783 $ 48,443 34.9 0.7%
2011 28,951 % 1,474,907.044 $ 49,244 387 8.1%
2012 30,687 $ 1,522,228,635 $ 49,605 358.2 7.1%
2013 31,088 % 1,560,026,928 % 50,181 36.5 6.9%
2014 31,088 3 N/A $ N/A NIA 5.6%
2015 31,888 % N/A 3 N/A N/A 5.5%
2018 31,888 % N/A $ N/A N/A 5.6%

(1) Census Bureau and Kentucky State Data Center
{2} Tri-County Economic Development Corporation
(3) Bureau of Labor Statistics Data and Kentucky State Data Center
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Rankam, Ranvwonw & Company & Lookout Corporate Center B 1=l 859/331-5000

Certiffed Public Accournitants 1717 Dixie Highway, Suite 600
Ft. Wright, Kentucky 41011

e

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AU-
DIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOV-
ERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Diane E. Whalen, Mayor
To the Members of City Council
City of Florence, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accapted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregrate
remaining fund information of the City of Florence, Kentucky as of and for the year ended June
30, 20186, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City
of Florence, Kentucky's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated

September 9, 2016,
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Flor-
ence, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective-
ness of the City of Florence, Kentucky’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effactiveness of the City of Florence, Kentucky's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to pre-
vent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficien-
cy, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detect-
ed and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiences, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal controf that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compiiance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Florence, Kentucky's fi-
nancial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an ob-
jective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this.Repert

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit per-
formed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

RANKIN, RANKIN & COMPANY

Ft. Wright, Kentucky
September 9, 2016
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